
 立法會 
Legislative Council 

 
 LC Paper No. CB(2)228/18-19 

(These minutes have been seen  
by the Administration) 

Ref : CB2/PS/3/16 
 
 

Panel on Food Safety and Environmental Hygiene 
 

Subcommittee on Issues Relating to Public Markets 
 

Minutes of meeting 
held on Tuesday, 10 July 2018, at 10:45 am 

in Conference Room 1 of the Legislative Council Complex 
 
 
Members : Hon Wilson OR Chong-shing, MH (Chairman) 

 present   Hon HO Kai-ming (Deputy Chairman) 
Hon LEUNG Yiu-chung 
Hon Claudia MO 
Hon Steven HO Chun-yin, BBS 
Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBS, JP 
Hon KWOK Wai-keung, JP 
Dr Hon Helena WONG Pik-wan 
Dr Hon CHIANG Lai-wan, SBS, JP 
Hon Andrew WAN Siu-kin 
Hon CHU Hoi-dick 
Hon SHIU Ka-fai 
Hon SHIU Ka-chun 
Hon YUNG Hoi-yan 
Hon Jeremy TAM Man-ho 
Hon AU Nok-hin 

 
 
Member : Hon Gary FAN Kwok-wai 
  attending   

 
 

Members : Hon LEUNG Che-cheung, SBS, MH, JP 
  absent  Dr Hon KWOK Ka-ki 

Dr Hon Elizabeth QUAT, BBS, JP 
Hon LAU Kwok-fan, MH 

 



- 2 - 
 

Public Officers : Item I 
  attending  

Dr CHUI Tak-yi, JP 
Under Secretary for Food & Health 
Food and Health Bureau 
 
Miss Irene CHEUNG Hoi-ying  
Assistant Secretary for Food and Health  
 (Food) 7 
Food and Health Bureau 
 
Mr David WONG Fuk-loi 
Deputy Director (Administration & Development) 
Food and Environmental Hygiene Department 
 
Mr Damian CHAN Kwok-wai  
Assistant Director (Market Special Duties) 
Food and Environmental Hygiene Department 
 

 
Attendance  : Tin Shui Wai New Force 
  by invitation   

Mr MO Kai-hong 
Community Organizer 
 
Tsz Lok Estate Resident Association 
 
Mr CHEUNG Mau-ching 
Community Service Officer 
 
Individual 
 
Mr MAK Ip-sing 
Yuen Long District Council Member 
 
社區發展陣線 
 
Miss CHAN Shuk-ki 
組織幹事 
 
改善東涌居民關注組 
 
林凱翹小姐 
成員 



- 3 - 
 

慈雲山建設力量 
 
岑宇軒博士 
社區主任 
 
慈雲山街市居民關注組 
 
陳梅娟女士 
代表 
 
Momentum 107 
 
Mr Raymond HO Man-kit  
Convenor 
 
社區前進 
 
賀卓軒先生 
成員 
 
Individual 
 
吳堃廉先生 
 
葵芳區私樓居民關注街市小組 
 
Miss LEUNG Man-yi 
Representative 
 
葵芳區私人樓宇居民聯會 
 
Mr WONG Wing-pan 
Chairman 
 
Individual 
 
Ms NG Siu-fung 
 
Individual 
 
Miss CHAU Man-yuk 



- 4 - 
 

Individual 
 
Mr WONG Ho-ming 
 
Individual 
 
Miss TSUI Ho-yee 
 
爭取北葵涌街市重建關注組 
 
Mr CHAN Sai-kit 
Community Officer 
 
The Civic Party 
 
Mr Henry SIN Ho-fai  
District Developer of the New Territories West 
 
Labour Party 
 
Mr CHIU Yan-loy 
倡議幹事 
 
Individual 
 
Mr NG Ka-kei 
 
Individual 
 
Mr NG Kim-sing 
Kwai Ching District Council Member 
 
Liberal Party 
 
Ms TSANG Cheuk-yi 
Member 
 
Individual 
 
Mr TO Ka-lun 
Yuen Long District Council Member 
 
 



- 5 - 
 

天水圍社區發展網絡 
 
何玉姫小姐 
會員 
 
政府應立即做街市地區公眾咨詢關注組 
 
梁兆隆先生 
成員 
 
Individual 
 
Mr WU Chi-kin 
 
東涌社區發展陣線 
 
梁霆峰先生 
成員 
 
天水圍社區發展陣線 
 
鄭曉汶小姐 
成員 
 
Individual 
 
Mr Anfield TAM Ching-hin 
 
Association of Yue Wan Market Stall Holder 
 
Mr WONG Chiu-yen 
Chairman 
 
Hong Kong & Kowloon & Merchants & Hawkers 
Association  
 
Mr WONG Yin-wa 
Secretary General 
 
Federation of Hong Kong Kowloon New Territories 
Hawker Associations  
 
Mr LAM Fook-chuen 
常務副主席兼街市委員會主席 



- 6 - 
 

 
The Association of Aberdeen Complex Merchandiser & 
Hawkers   
 
Mr CHAN Kin-wa 
Chairman 
 
Tai Wai Market Mutual Aid Committee 
 
Mr HEUNG Chung-wan 
Chairman 
 
Sai Wan Ho Commercial Union 
 
Mr KONG Chack-ho 
Chairman 
 
Luen Wo Hui Market Association 
 
Mr TSANG Hing-wa 
Chairman 
 
富東街市關注組 
 
林祝意女士 
代表 
 

 
Clerk in : Ms Alice LEUNG 
  attendance  Chief Council Secretary (2) 6 
 
 
Staff in : Miss Connie AU 
  attendance  Council Secretary (2) 6 

 
Mr Clement HAU 
Council Secretary (2) 7 
 
Miss Meisy KWOK 
Legislative Assistant (2) 6 

 
 

 



- 7 - 
Action 
 

I. Issues relating to the positioning and management of public 
markets and the Market Modernization Programme 
(LC Paper Nos. CB(2)1544/17-18(01) to (02) and CB(2)1760/17-
18(01) to (02)) 

 
1. The Subcommittee deliberated (index of proceedings attached at 
Annex). 
 
2. The Subcommittee received oral representations from 37 deputations/ 
individuals attending the meeting.  Members also noted that one written 
submission from an individual not attending the meeting was received by the 
Subcommittee.  The major views expressed by the deputations were 
summarized as follows: 

 
(a) in addition to serving as a major source of fresh food provisions 

for the general public, public markets should offer a variety of 
foods at cheaper prices so as to relieve the pressure of inflation 
on the general public and compete with the markets of Link 
Real Estate Investment Trust ("the Link"); 

 
(b) the Administration should review the current Hong Kong 

Planning Standards and Guidelines in respect of the standard for 
the provision of public markets and set a clear planning criteria 
for public markets, such as provision of public markets based on 
the number of population in a district; 

 
(c) the Administration should build new public markets in Tung 

Chung, Tin Shui Wai and Hung Shui Kiu given their large areas 
and population, and also in some urban districts such as Tsz 
Wan Shan with a view to counteracting the Link's monopoly in 
the operation of markets within the district and providing the 
local residents with more choices; 

 
(d) the Administration should adopt a bottom-up approach in 

gauging public views on the building of new public markets, 
overhaul of public markets and in-situ redevelopment of public 
markets, by visiting the markets of individual districts, holding 
consultation sessions with stakeholders including District 
Councils, stall tenants and local residents on issues such as the 
type of improvement works needed for individual public 
markets and site selection for building new public markets or 
redeveloping existing ones; 



- 8 - 
Action 
 

(e) the Administration should in the long term consider building 
multi-storey municipal complexes to incorporate public markets 
and cooked food centres as well as other community facilities 
such as libraries, sports venues and welfare facilities as the 
multi-purpose municipal complexes could better meet the daily 
needs of the local community and utilize land resources; 

 
(f) provision of air-conditioning ("A/C') systems was considered 

essential nowadays, and the Administration should bear the A/C 
charges for common areas in the public markets, as well as the 
maintenance costs of A/C systems, in order to encourage more 
stall tenants to support retrofitting A/C systems in their 
respective public markets.  The Administration should expedite 
the retrofitting works of A/C systems so as to minimize impact 
on stall tenants and local residents.  There was a suggestion that 
the Administration should provide ex-gratia payments to stall 
tenants to compensate for their loss of income during the full 
market closure for retrofitting works of A/C systems, and a 
waiver of rental should be granted when the markets reopened 
after completion of works; and 

 
(g) high occupancy rates in public markets did not necessarily 

reflect the vibrancy of public markets, as some tenants changed 
the use of stalls to personal use or storage without authorization.  
Other factors such as patronage and usage rate of public 
markets, and the actual number of stalls in operation should also 
be taken into account. 

 
3. The Administration gave a consolidated response to the views 
expressed by the deputations/individuals as follows: 

 
(a) with the $2 billion earmarked for the Market Modernization 

Programme ("MMP") and a dedicated team set up, the Food and 
Environmental Hygiene Department ("FEHD") would examine 
and address the hardware and software issues of the 99 public 
markets under its management, in order to meet the needs of the 
public; 

 
(b) regarding the provision of new public markets, consideration 

would be made on a case-by-case basis to ensure that the needs 
of individual districts were suitably met and a host of factors 
including the population of individual districts, market facilities 



- 9 - 
Action 
 

and fresh provision retail outlets available in the vicinity, and 
district planning would all be considered; 

 
(c) in building new public markets and identifying public markets 

for fundamental overhaul and in-situ redevelopment, the Food 
and Health Bureau and FEHD would coordinate with other 
relevant bureaux and departments, and optimize the use of land 
resources in line with the "single site, multiple use" principle.  
The Administration would also conduct minor improvement 
works where necessary; 

 
(d) the Administration would identify suitable public markets to 

conduct major overhaul, which would set a good example for 
modernizing other public markets in the future.  Aberdeen 
Market was being considered as a possible candidate in this 
respect; and 

 
(e) the Administration stressed that the provision of A/C systems in 

public markets might not have direct relevance to their 
vibrancy.  For improvement works in public markets, the 
Administration would consult the stakeholders as appropriate. It 
would follow up on the remaining 10 markets which had 
reached the 80% threshold of tenants' support for retrofitting 
A/C systems under MMP. 

 
 
Motions moved by members 
 
Motion 1 
 
4. Mr CHAN Han-pan moved the following motion, which was 
seconded by Mr Steven HO: 
 

鑒於特區政府在 2018-2019 年度《財政預算案》提到預留

20 億元，在未來 10 年推行街市現代化計劃("計劃")，全面

檢視現有近百個街市的情況，改善設施，包括加快加裝冷

氣、全面翻新或重建，本小組委員會促請政府： 
 
(1) 加快推行計劃的進度，盡快提出計劃的具體方案，並確

保工程在設計、審批撥款、招標及施工等各階段取得合

理進展，並定期向公眾交待計劃的進度； 
 



- 10 - 
Action 
 

(2) 盡快檢討《香港規劃標準與準則》內有關公眾街市的規

劃準則，以確保社區有足夠的街市檔位； 
 

(3) 積極就計劃詳情諮詢市民與街市檔戶的意見，確保各持

份者的意見能得以充分反映；及 
 

(4) 就街市冷氣費的訂定上，要求只收取販商租用檔位面積

的冷氣費，其餘公用範圍的冷氣費和維修費用則由政府

承擔。 
 

(Translation) 
 

That, given $2 billion will be earmarked for implementing a Market 
Modernization Programme ("MMP") over the next 10 years, which 
will entail a comprehensive review of nearly 100 existing markets and 
improvement works including early installation of air-conditioning 
("A/C") systems, major overhaul or redevelopment as mentioned in 
the 2018-2019 Budget, this Subcommittee urges the Government to: 
 
(1) expedite the progress of implementing MMP, devise specific 

proposals for MMP expeditiously, ensure reasonable progress in 
different stages of the project including design, funding 
approval, tendering and construction etc., and inform the public 
on the progress of MMP on a regular basis; 
 

(2) review the planning standards for public market facilities as set 
out in the Hong Kong Planning Standards and Guidelines, with 
a view to ensuring an adequate supply of market stalls for the 
community; 
 

(3) consult members of the public and stall tenants on the details of 
MMP in a proactive manner and ensure that views from all 
stakeholders will be fully reflected; and 
 

(4) charge stall tenants A/C charges only for the actual floor area of 
their stalls, whereas A/C charges attributable to public areas of 
markets and other maintenance fees should be borne by the 
Government when determining A/C charges of public markets. 

 
5. The Chairman decided that the motion was directly related to the 
agenda item, and members agreed to deal with the motion.  The Chairman 
put the motion to vote.  All members present voted in favour of the motion.  
The Chairman declared that the motion was carried. 



- 11 - 
Action 
 

Motion 2 
 
6. Dr CHIANG Lai-wan moved the following motion: 
 

就有關公眾街市的定位及管理事宜及街市現代化計劃，本小

組委員會促請政府： 
 
(1) 全面檢討街市的使用率、缺乏空調等問題，並盡快提交

街市現代化計劃的時間表，及早令各街市租戶及市民受

惠； 
 

(2) 責成有關官員與各街市持份者溝通安裝冷氣事宜，例如

為出售肉類的攤檔安裝封閉式冷氣，蔬果乾貨等攤檔則

按實際情況而定； 
 

(3) 研究於街市長期空置的地方設置花圃、健身中心、公營

診所等，以地盡其用；及 
 

(4) 就恢復街市養貓的政策諮詢各街市持份者，以期改善鼠

患問題。 
 

(Translation) 
 

That, on issues relating to the positioning and management of public 
markets and the Market Modernization Programme ("MMP"), this 
Subcommittee urges the Government to: 
 

(1) conduct a comprehensive review on issues such as the 
utilization rate of markets and the lack of air-conditioning 
("A/C") systems therein, and expeditiously submit a timetable 
for implementing MMP, with a view to benefiting the tenants of 
various markets and the public as early as possible; 
 

(2) instruct the officials concerned to communicate with the 
stakeholders of various markets on matters relating to the 
installation of A/C systems such as the installation of closed 
A/C systems for meat stalls and depending on the actual 
circumstances, for stalls selling vegetables, fruits and dried 
goods; 
 

(3) conduct a study on setting up planters, gym centres, public 
clinics, etc. in markets where there are space that has been left 



- 12 - 
Action 
 

vacant for a long period of time, with a view to fully utilizing 
land resources; and 

 
(4) consult the stakeholders of various markets on a policy of re-

allowing the keeping of cats in markets, with a view to 
alleviating rodent problem. 

 
7. The Chairman decided that the motion was directly related to the 
agenda item, and members agreed to deal with the motion.  The Chairman 
put the motion to vote.  All members present voted in favour of the motion. 
The Chairman declared that the motion was carried. 

 
Follow-up action arising from the discussion 
 
8. Concerning the motion proposed to be moved by Ms Claudia MO 
about the future development plan of Mong Kok Market which was closed in 
2010, the Chairman said that as the proposed motion was not directly related 
to the agenda item and the matter involved various bureaux and departments, 
he decided that the proposed motion would not be dealt with.  Nonetheless, 
the Chairman instructed the Clerk to forward Ms MO's proposed motion to 
the Administration for response.   
 
 
II. Any other business 
 
9. Mr Andrew WAN suggested that the Subcommittee should consider 
inviting deputations to give views on building new pubic markets in Tung 
Chung, Tin Shui Wai and Hung Shui Kiu, as well as on the subject relating 
to the standard for the provision of public markets at a future meeting. 
 
Date of next meeting 
 
10. The Chairman advised that the Clerk would consult the Chairman and 
liaise with the Administration on the date and items of discussion for the 
next meeting of the Subcommittee, which would be held after the summer 
recess.  Members noted that the Secretariat would advise them of the 
meeting arrangements in due course. 
 
11. There being no other business, the meeting ended at 1:32 pm. 
 
 
Council Business Division 2 
Legislative Council Secretariat 
12 November 2018 

Clerk 

 

Clerk/ 
Admin 



Annex 

Proceedings of the meeting of the 
Subcommittee on Issues Relating to Public Markets 

on Tuesday, 10 July 2018, at 10:45 am 
in Conference Room 1 of the Legislative Council Complex 

 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) / Discussion Action 
required 

Agenda item I – Issues relating to the positioning and management of public markets and the Market 
Modernization Programme 

001717 – 
002247 
 

Chairman 
 

The Chairman's opening remarks 
 

 

002248 – 
002553 
 

Mr MO Kai-hong, 
Tin Shui Wai New 
Force 

 

Presentation of views  

002554 – 
002858 
 

Mr CHEUNG Mau- 
ching, Tsz Lok 
Estate Resident 
Association  

 

Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1760/17-18(03)] 

 

002859 – 
003204 
 

Mr MAK Ip-sing, 
Yuen Long District 
Council Member 

 

Presentation of views  

003205 – 
003510 
 

Miss CHAN Shuk-ki,
社區發展陣線  

Presentation of views  

003511 – 
003820 
 

林 凱 翹 小 姐 , 改
善東涌居民關

注組  
 

Presentation of views  

003821 – 
004129 
 

岑 宇 軒 博 士 , 慈
雲山建設力量  

Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1760/17-18(03)] 

 

004130 – 
004446 
 

陳 梅 娟 女 士 , 慈
雲山街市居民

關注組  
 

Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1760/17-18(03)] 

 

004447 – 
004804 
 

Mr Raymond HO 
Man-kit, 
Momentum 107 

 

Presentation of views  

004805 – 
005030 
 

賀 卓 軒 先 生 , 社
區前進  

Presentation of views  

005031 – 
005341 
 

吳堃廉先生  Presentation of views  



- 2 - 
 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) / Discussion Action 
required 

005342 – 
005722 
 

Miss LEUNG Man- 
yi, 葵芳區私樓
居民關 注街 市

小組  
 

Presentation of views  

005723 – 
005858 
 

Mr WONG Wing- 
pan, 葵 芳 區 私
人樓宇 居民 聯

會  
 

Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1784/17-18(01)] 

 

005859 – 
010206 
 

Ms NG Siu-fung Presentation of views  

010207 – 
010451 
 

Miss CHAU Man-yuk Presentation of views  

010452 – 
010758 
 

Mr WONG Ho-ming Presentation of views  

010759 – 
011118 
 

Miss TSUI Ho-yee Presentation of views  

011119 – 
011436 
 

Mr CHAN Sai-kit, 
爭取北 葵涌 街

市重建關注組  
 

Presentation of views  

011437 – 
011753 
 

Mr Henry SIN 
Ho-fai, The Civic 
Party 

 

Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1860/17-18(01)] 

 

011754 – 
012059 
 

Mr CHIU Yan-loy, 
Labour Party 

Presentation of views  

012100 – 
012401 
 

Mr NG Ka-kei Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1760/17-18(04)] 

 

012402 – 
012711 
 

Mr NG Kim-sing, 
Kwai Tsing 
District Council 
Member 

 

Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1760/17-18(04)] 

 

012712 – 
013028 
 

Ms TSANG Cheuk- 
yi, Liberal Party 

Presentation of views  

013029 – 
013330 
 

Mr TO Ka-lun, Yuen 
Long District 
Council Member 

Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1860/17-18(02)] 
 
 

 



- 3 - 
 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) / Discussion Action 
required 

013331 – 
013643 
 

何 玉 姫 小 姐 ,  天
水圍社區發展

網絡  
 

Presentation of views  

013644 – 
013912 
 

梁 兆 隆 先 生 ,  政
府應立即做街

市地區公眾咨

詢關注組  
 

Presentation of views  

013913 – 
014223 
 

Mr WU Chi-kin Presentation of views  

014224 – 
014437 
 

梁 霆 峰 先 生 ,  東
涌社區發展陣

線  
 

Presentation of views  

014438 – 
014710 
 

鄭 曉 汶 小 姐 ,  天
水圍社區發展

陣線  
 

Presentation of views  

014711 – 
015025 
 

Mr Anfield TAM 
Ching-hin 

 

Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1760/17-18(05)] 

 

015026 – 
015401 
 

Mr HEUNG Chung- 
wan, Tai Wai 
Market Mutual 
Aid Committee 

 

Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1760/17-18(07)] 

 

015402 – 
015733 
 

Mr CHAN Kin-wa, 
The Association of 
Aberdeen Complex 
Merchandiser & 
Hawkers 

 

Presentation of views  

015734 – 
020049 
 

Mr LAM Fook-chuen, 
Federation of Hong 
Kong Kowloon 
New Territories 
Hawker 
Associations 

 

Presentation of views 
[LC Paper No. CB(2)1760/17-18(06)] 

 

020050 – 
020403 
 

Mr WONG Yin-wa, 
Hong Kong & 
Kowloon & 
Merchants & 
Hawkers 
Association 

 

Presentation of views  



- 4 - 
 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) / Discussion Action 
required 

020404 – 
020709 
 

Mr WONG Chiu-yen, 
Association of Yue 
Wan Market Stall 
Holder 

 

Presentation of views  

020710 – 
021019 
 

Mr KONG Chack-ho, 
Sai Wan Ho 
Commercial Union 

 

Presentation of views  

021020 – 
021349 
 

The Chairman 
Mr TSANG Hing-wa, 

Luen Wo Hui 
Market Association 

 

Presentation of views 
 
(Extension of meeting for 15 minutes beyond the 
appointed ending time) 
 

 

021350 – 
021704 
 

林祝意女士 ,  富東
街市關注組 

Presentation of views  

021705 – 
022159 
 

Chairman 
Admin 
 

The Administration gave a consolidated response 
to the views expressed by deputations/individuals. 
 

 

022200 – 
022447 
 

Chairman 
Ms Claudia MO 
Admin 
 

Ms Claudia MO urged the Administration to 
expedite the modernization of public markets and 
retrofitting of air-conditioning ("A/C") systems in 
public markets, and considered that the 
Administration should take forward planned 
projects such as the major overhaul of Aberdeen 
Market. 
 
Following up the view of a deputation on the site 
of Mong Kok Market which was closed in 2010, 
Ms MO enquired about the possibility of putting 
the site to other uses before it was redeveloped, 
such as for organizing bazaars. 
 
The Administration advised that it would 
welcome views from the public concerning how 
the Mong Kok Market building could be utilized 
before the redevelopment.  The Administration 
adopted a positive attitude towards bottom-up and 
district-led proposals for organizing bazaars.  
The proposals would be handled and considered 
by relevant bureaux and departments according to 
their established procedures and vetting criteria. 
 

 

022448 – 
022811 
 

Chairman 
Dr CHIANG Lai-wan 
Admin 
 

Dr CHIANG Lai-wan urged the Administration to 
provide a timetable for revitalizing individual 
public markets.  She also shared the view of 
some deputations that multi-storey municipal 
complexes should be built to incorporate public 
markets and other community facilities such as 
health care centres and fitness centres. 
 

 



- 5 - 
 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) / Discussion Action 
required 

As regards the retrofitting of A/C systems in 
public markets, Dr CHIANG suggested that A/C 
systems should first be installed for stalls selling 
meat and fish; while installing evaporative air 
coolers and better ventilation systems might 
suffice for stalls selling vegetables and fruits.   
 
The Administration noted the suggestion for its 
future work. 
 

022812 – 
023124 
 

Chairman 
Mr KWOK Wai-keung 
Admin 
 

Mr KWOK Wai-keung considered that the 
Administration should improve the hardware and 
management of public markets in order to attract 
more customers and enhance their 
competitiveness. 
 
Mr KWOK also considered that public markets 
with poor ventilation and a high temperature, such 
as Quarry Bay Market and Aberdeen Market, 
should be retrofitted with A/C systems, in order to 
provide a better operating environment for tenants 
and a more pleasant shopping environment for the 
public.  Mr KWOK also urged the 
Administration to lower the 80% threshold of 
tenants' support ("the 80% Threshold") required 
for retrofitting A/C systems in public markets.   
 
The Administration advised that it would step up 
its efforts in improving the operating environment 
of public markets. 
 

 

023125 – 
023429 
 

Chairman 
Mr CHAN Han-pan 
Admin 
 

Mr CHAN Han-pan enquired: 
 
(a) whether there was a timetable on the 

redevelopment of the North Kwai Chung 
Market; 

 
(b) referring to the motion "Updating the Hong 

Kong Planning Standards and Guidelines and 
increasing community facilities to enhance 
living environment" moved by him and 
amended by some other Members, which was 
passed at the Council meeting of 7 December 
2016, whether the Administration had made 
any progress in updating the Hong Kong 
Planning Standards and Guidelines 
("HKPSG"); and 

 
(c) whether the Administration would consider 

requiring tenants to pay A/C charges based on 
the size of stall area only. 

 



- 6 - 
 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) / Discussion Action 
required 

The Administration advised that: 
 
(a) there was currently no timetable for 

redeveloping North Kwai Chung Market, and 
the redevelopment of the market would be 
taken into consideration in the overall 
planning of public markets; 
 

(b) in examining the provision of public markets, 
a host of factors following HKPSG would be 
considered; and 

 
(c) under the current practice, tenants of existing 

public markets with A/C systems would have 
to bear the A/C charges in total.   

 
023430 – 
023728 

Chairman 
Ms YUNG Hoi-yan 
Admin 
 

Ms YUNG Hoi-yan considered that public 
markets should be retrofitted with A/C systems.  
She was of the view that: 
 
(a) the Administration made the 80% Threshold a 

requirement for retrofitting A/C systems, a 
requirement which was difficult to reach.  As 
the full market closure during the retrofitting 
works would affect the business of tenants, 
tenants would have difficulties supporting the 
retrofitting of A/C systems in public markets 
without ex-gratia payments from the 
Administration to compensate for their loss of 
business; and 
 

(b) the Administration should consider bearing 
the A/C charges of public areas in public 
markets. 

 
The Administration responded that it would 
explore ways to speed up the progress of 
retrofitting A/C systems in public markets and 
further study and consider the views expressed by 
the deputations. 
 

 

023729 – 
024054 
 

Chairman 
Mr SHIU Ka-fai 
Mr HEUNG Chung- 

wan, Tai Wai 
Market Mutual Aid 
Committee 

Mr KONG Chack-ho, 
Sai Wan Ho 
Commercial Union 

 

Mr SHIU Ka-fai stressed that the Administration 
should expedite the retrofitting of A/C systems in 
public markets, adding that the 80% Threshold 
should be lowered so that the retrofitting works 
could be implemented more easily.  As regards 
the A/C charges of public markets, Mr SHIU 
urged the Administration to bear the charges for 
the public areas in public markets. 
 
 

 



- 7 - 
 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) / Discussion Action 
required 

At the request of Mr SHIU, the Chairman invited 
Mr HEUNG Chung-wan and Mr KONG 
Chack-ho to further elaborate their views on the 
issue of A/C charges borne by tenants.  
 

024055 – 
024404 
 

Chairman 
Dr Helena WONG 
Admin 
 

Dr Helena WONG said that the Democratic Party 
supported upgrading the hardware of public 
markets, including retrofitting A/C systems as 
well as using waterproof and non-slippery floor 
material, and urged the Administration to allocate 
more resources in order to expedite the 
modernization of public markets. 
 
Dr WONG asked about the factors considered in 
the provision of public markets, such as the 
population of individual districts and the 
patronage of public markets.  Expressing 
concern about the requests of some deputations 
that the Administration should build a new public 
market in the district of Tsz Wan Shan to meet the 
needs of local residents and also to provide 
cheaper shopping choices for them, she enquired 
whether and how the Administration would assist 
the local residents. 
 
The Administration responded that in the 
provision of public markets, a host of factors 
would be taken into consideration, including 
population and demographic mix of the area, 
community needs, and market facilities and fresh 
provision retail outlets available in the vicinity.  
The Administration would also look into the case 
of Tsz Wan Shan to see what was warranted. 
 

 

024405 – 
024606 
 

Chairman 
 
 

(further extension of meeting time) 
 
The Chairman decided that Ms Claudia MO's 
proposed motion about the future development 
plan of Mong Kok Market would not be dealt 
with, and instructed the Clerk to forward Ms 
MO's proposed motion to the Administration for 
response. 
 

 
 
Clerk/ 
Admin 
(paragraph 
8 of the 
minutes) 

024607 – 
024748 
 

Chairman 
Mr CHAN Han-pan 
 

Moving of motion by Mr CHAN Han-pan 
(seconded by Mr Steven HO) 
 

 

024749 – 
024938 
 

Chairman 
Dr CHIANG Lai-wan 

Moving of motion by Dr CHIANG Lai-wan  
 

 



- 8 - 
 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) / Discussion Action 
required 

Agenda item II – Any other business 

024939 – 
025132 
 

Chairman 
Mr Andrew WAN 

Mr Andrew WAN's suggestion of inviting 
deputations to give views on building new public 
markets in Tung Chung, Tin Shui Wai and Hung 
Shui Kiu, as well as on the subject relating to the 
standard for the provision of public markets at a 
future Subcommittee meeting.  He hoped that 
information on building new public markets in 
these three districts would be available before the 
meeting with deputations. 
 
Next meeting to be held after the summer recess. 
 

 

 
 

Council Business Division 2 
Legislative Council Secretariat 
12 November 2018 


	fseh_pm20180710cb2-228-e
	fseh_pm20180710cb2-228-a-e

